KENT FLOOD RISK AND WATER MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 5th February, 2025

10.00 am

Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall,
Maidstone

\_ /

rKEnt

County
Councll

kent.gov.uk




Council

kent.gov.uk

AGENDA

KENT FLOOD RISK AND WATER MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Wednesday, 5th February, 2025, at 10.00 am Ask for: Matt Dentten

Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, Telephone 03000 418 381
Maidstone

Membership (7)

Conservative (5): Mr A R Hills (Chairman), Mr D L Brazier, Mr D Crow-Brown,
Mr P Cole and Mrs M McArthur

Labour (1): Ms M Dawkins

Green and

Independent (1): Mr M A J Hood

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

1. Apologies

Declarations of Interest

Minutes of the meeting on 20 November 2024 (Pages 1 - 4)
The Role of Internal Drainage Boards (IDBs)

How the Environment Agency manage Water Quality

Met Office presentation on Climate Change

N o o bk~ w Db

Environment Agency and Met Office Alerts and Warnings and KCC severe weather
response activity (Pages 5 - 16)

EXEMPT ITEMS




(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items. During any such items
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

Benjamin Watts
General Counsel
03000 416814

Tuesday, 28 January 2025



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

KENT FLOOD RISK AND WATER MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Kent Flood Risk and Water Management Committee
held in the Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on
Wednesday, 20 November 2024.

PRESENT: Mr A R Hills (Chairman), Mr D L Brazier, Mr D Crow-Brown,
Ms M Dawkins and Mr M A J Hood

ALSO PRESENT: Mrs L Wright

IN ATTENDANCE: Ms J Shippey (South East Water), Mr Andrew Halliday (South
East Water), Mr A Feacey (Resilience and Emergency Planning Manager), Roshana
Iruthayaraj (Resilience and Emergency Project Officer), Ms G Brown (KALC),
Charles Mackonochie (KALC), Clir C Cornell (Canterbury City Council), Clir S Brown
(Dartford Borough Council), Clir C Gale (Dartford Borough Council), Ms D Croxton
(Gravesham Borough Council), , Clir Summersgill (Maidstone Borough Council), Clir
R Yates (Thanet District Council), and, Clir M Boughton (Tonbridge and Malling
Borough Council)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

Apologies
(Item 1)

Apologies were received from Mr Cole and Mrs McArthur.

Declarations of Interest
(Item 2)

There were no declarations of interest.

Minutes of the meeting on 16 July 2024
(Iltem 3)

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 16 July 2024 were an accurate
record and that they be signed by the Chair.

How the Environment Agency manage water quality
(ltem 4)

The agenda item was adjourned due to the absence of a representative from the
Environment Agency.

Page 1



South East Water - Water Resources Management Plan
(ltem 5)

Jo Shippey, Community Engagement Manager and Andrew Halliday, Water
Resources Strategy Manager, from South East Water were in attendance for this
item

1) Mr Halliday presented on the Water Resources Management Plan.
2) Further to questions from Members and guests, it was noted that:

e The housing projections and population growth projections were used in the
water resources management planning but it was difficult to meet the
challenge of localised changes in population density.

e South East Water worked closely with other stakeholders and regulators as
part of environmental considerations. South East Water had a close working
relationship with Southern Water.

e There was a national forum of water companies where desalination was
discussed and other matters. Further understanding of how other countries are
using desalination for water supply was being developed.

e South East Water was working with Southern Water on possible water
recycling.

e Concerns were raised about risks associated with demand management and
the emphasis on customers using less water. It was felt water auditing with
customers would help them understand how to use less and smart metering
would help to identify leaks.

e South East Water were due to receive the final settlement from Ofwat in
December. South East Water were making representations as part of local
plan engagement processes and seeking that where possible that
developments have lower per capita consumption (PCC).

3) RESOLVED to note the report.

Kent Flood Resilience
(Item 6)

Andy Jeffery, Head of Resilience and Emergency Planning, was in virtual attendance
for this item

1) Mr Jeffery presented on planning for flooding in Kent. See presentation attached.
2) Further to questions from Members and guests, it was noted that:

o Different agencies who respond where there are flooding incidents have their
own stocks of equipment such as sandbags, pumps, etc. Agencies would work
together to mitigate the effects of a ‘once in a lifetime’ flooding event.

e In the case of a very severe event, such as the Wantsum Channel flooding
and cutting of Thanet from the rest of Kent, national assistance would be
required.

Page 2



e Each district and borough had its own multi-agency flood plan. KCC worked
with the Environment Agency on the template used for these plans and to
make sure local representatives of the agencies were part of the process of
updating these plans. As part of this work, it was considered where parts of
plans could have impacts elsewhere. The plans were to be fully reviewed
every 3 years but in the interim, they were monitored on at least an annual
basis.

e |t was felt that work was needed in communities to make sure residents were
prepared and knew what actions to take in event of a flooding emergency.

3) RESOLVED to note the presentation.

Environment Agency and Met Office Alerts and Warnings and KCC
severe weather response activity
(ltem 7)

Andy Jeffery, Head of Resilience and Emergency Planning, was in virtual attendance
for this item

1) Mr Jeffery outlined the report.
2) Further to questions from Members, it was noted that:
e Data on Environment Agency flood alerts was missing but this would be
brought to the next meeting and it was requested that more information be
brought to show the direction of travel in terms of the Environment Agency’s

work in regard to flooding in Kent.

3) RESOLVED to note the report.

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

To: Kent Flood Risk & Water Management Committee — 5t February 2024

From: Rebecca Spore, Director of Infrastructure, Strategic and Corporate
Services

Subject: Environment Agency and Met Office Alerts and Warnings and KCC

severe weather response activity.

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary: To update the Kent Flood Risk & Water Management Committee on the current
water situation, weather statistics, Environment Agency and Met Office Warnings, and flood
response activity since the last meeting of the Committee on 20t November 2024.

1. Background

1.1 This report is the latest of the regular updates to the Committee regarding the current
water situation in Kent, and recent severe weather incident response activity in Kent.

1.2 The KCC Duty Emergency Planning Officer (DEPQO), KCC Highways Senior Duty Officer,
and the Contact Point receive Environment Agency (EA) and Met Office alerts and
warnings regarding severe weather on a 24/7 basis. Site-specific impacts are notified
to the DEPO by the emergency services and other partners, with reports from the
public received by Contact Point. KCC also use the Severe Weather Impacts System
(SWIMS) to capture multi-agency resources and costs arising from severe weather
incidents.

1.3 Across the county, 85,500 residential and commercial addresses in areas at risk from
fluvial (river) or coastal flooding. Where possible, flood vulnerable properties are
offered a Flood Warning Service by the EA. An early warning of flood risk to
communities (including areas outside of floodplains) is provided by Flood Guidance
Statements, Weather Warnings and the activation of a multi-agency Severe Weather
Advisory Group (SWAG).

2. Kent water situation and weather statistics

2.1 Groundwater levels in the Kent & South London (KSL) area are rising, as is typical for
this time of year, but are normal or above normal:

e The KSL area received 78% of the long-term average (LTA) rainfall in December.

e Rainfall was below normal in catchments in the Northwest and one in the East:
the rest of experienced normal rainfall.

e At the end of December, most catchments had Soil Moisture Deficits (SMDs) of
10mm or less, except for three in the northeast of KSL.

e |n December, monthly mean flows (MMFs) were mostly normal, with two flow
sites in the northeast exceeding normal levels.

Page 5



2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

On 8t December 2024, the Charing Pumping Station rain gauge in the Stour
catchment recorded the highest daily rainfall of 25.9mm. The highest daily rainfall
totals were recorded on 4th / 5th / 9th / 18th December, ranging from 13.8 - 21.3 mm.
Dry days with less than 1mm of rainfall occurred in the middle and end of the month.

Normal MMFs were seen at eight of the eleven major flow sites. Above-normal MMFs
were seen at two flow sites in the northwest, including the River Darent at Hawley. For
the month of December, Dour at Crabble had the highest MMF highest percentage
LTA, 127%.

By the end of December, chalk groundwater levels are either average or above typical
for this time of year. In certain places, the increase in groundwater is in line with 96%

of the LTA's effective rainfall. It is also consistent with the continued depletion of Soil

moisture deficits seen in most areas by the end of December

Bewl had normal reservoir levels at 79% and 63% and Bough Beech had above-
normal levels at 92%.

The Met Office issued 20 weather warnings (including updates), all of which were
Yellow Warnings: of these 9 were Low Impact, 11 Medium Impact, 0 High Impact over

October to December,

Met Office statistics for Kent’s weather warning for October to December 2024 are set
out in full at appendix 4 of this report.

Page 6



3. Recent Incident Response

3.1 For all weather warnings, the DEPO monitored the situation, and no action was
required other than liaising with the Environment Agency and KCC Highways.
Regarding flood alerts, the DEPO again liaises with the EA and KCC Highways.

3.2 An update on the response to Storm Eowyn will be given at the next Committee
meeting.

Alert Register

Date Received from Incident

07/10/2024 Met Office Severe weather - yellow
08/10/2024 Met Office Severe weather - yellow
08/10/2024 Met Office Severe weather - yellow
10/10/2024 Environment Agency Pollution - Qil / other
11/10/2024 KCC Waste Request for resources
14/10/2024 Environment Agency Flood impacts
15/10/2024 KFRS Fire and fire related
16/10/2024 Kent Police Outages- Gas
23/10/2024 KFRS Fire and fire related
18/11/2024 KCC Weather alerts - Cold
19/11/2024 Met Office Weather alerts - Cold
21/11/2024 Canterbury City Council Fire and fire related
22/11/2024 Met Office Severe weather - yellow
26/11/1024 Environment Agency Flood impacts
02/12/2024 Dover District Council Outages - ICT cyber attack
03/12/2024 Kent Fire & Rescue Fire and fire related
03/12/2024 Kent Fire & Rescue Fire and fire related
04/12/2024 Canterbury City Council Fire and fire related
04/12/2024 Met Office Severe weather - yellow
07/12/2024 Met Office Severe weather - yellow
09/12/2024 Environment Agency Flood impacts
15/12/2024 Environment Agency Pollution - Oil / other
16/12/2024 National Highways Traffic - Jams, RTCs etc.
19/12/2024 Met Office Severe weather - yellow
27/12/2024 KFRS Fire and fire related
20/12/2024 Met Office Weather alerts - Cold
30/12/2024 Met Office Severe weather - yellow

Page 7




4, Outlook

4.1 The Met Office three-month outlook summary indicates:

e a 5% chance that that the season will be cooler than average (0.3 lower than
the normal chance),

e a340% chance that it will be near average (0.7 times the usual chance)
e a55% chance that it will be milder than average (2.8 times the usual chance).

In terms of rainfall, the summary indicates:
e a 15% chance the season will be drier than average,
e 55% chance that it will be near average
e a30% chance it will be wetter than average.

For wind speeds, the summary suggests:
e a 10% chance that it will be calmer than average,
e 3 55% chance that they will be near average
e a35% chance of windier than average conditions

5. Recommendations

5.1 That Members note the warnings received since the last meeting of the Committee;
and contribute to planning and response policy and practice through oversight and
debate.

6. Contact Details

Report Authors: Andy Jeffery (Head of Resilience & Emergency Planning), Infrastructure,
Deputy Chief Executive's Department, tel. 03000 421 871, e-mail andy.jeffery@kent.gov.uk

Roshana Iruthayaraj (Project Officer, Compliance & Community Resilience Team, Resilience &
Emergency Planning Service), Infrastructure, Deputy Chief Executive's Department, tel. 03000
421 871, e-mail roshana.iruthayaraj@kent.gov.uk

Relevant Director: Rebecca Spore (Director of Infrastructure), Deputy Chief Executive's
Department tel. 03000 412 064, email rebecca.spore@kent.gov.uk

Page 8



mailto:andy.jeffery@kent.gov.uk
mailto:roshana.iruthayaraj@kent.gov.uk
mailto:rebecca.spore@kent.gov.uk

6 abed

Appendix 1.: EA - Flood risk zones - visual map display

Live update of this image on Resilience Direct, image screen shot taken for this report on 23rd January 2025.

The purple on the map shows the areas that are at risk of flooding.
' ' f " 7 £ E
Green

i Fop :
! et iy ¢ >
'r-r! 2y i
swillgh o o I8
eacansfield
k2
2
I.:.
>
.f- _;
>
¥ o
\
Fa 1 [ P
w -
: . . ? {.
4 ’ . 3 - il
)
N
-
L3 : -\
- \J
g Y
gl U \ il
= = £
4 ~
I Jrep (_ﬁa ¥
s .
o

(e

| 50km |

| 20mi |

© Crown copyright and database rights {2025) Ordnance Survey (licence number 100038200).
Mapping to be used solely for preparing for and responding to emergencies.

Poweredby A | R (=1 4
systems

Source -

Resilience Direct




Appendix 2 : EA Flood Alerts and Warnings issued since 15t October 2024 to 315t December

Date Warning area Type

07/10/2024 | Shuttle and Cray Flood Alert
08/10/2024 | Rivers on the Isle of Sheppey Flood Alert
09/10/2024 | River Teise area from Lamberhurst to Goudhurst Flood Alert
09/10/2024 | Rivers Eden and Eden Brook Flood Alert
09/10/2024 | Upper River Medway Flood Alert
09/10/2024 E;v:;l Rother and its tributaries from Turks Bridge to the Royal Military Flood Alert
09/10/2024 | Upper River Stour Flood Alert
09/10/2024 | River Bourne from Hadlow to East Peckham Flood Alert
09/10/2024 | River Teise and Lesser Teise area from Horsmonden to Yalding Flood Alert
14/10/2024 | River Bourne from Hadlow to East Peckham Flood Alert
14/10/2024 | Rivers Eden and Eden Brook Flood Alert
17/10/2024 | Upper River Stour Flood Alert
17/10/2024 | Coast from Ramsgate to Kingsdown Flood Alert
17/10/2024 | Coast from Sandgate to Dungeness Flood Alert
17/10/2024 | Coast from St Margaret's at Cliffe to Sandgate Flood Alert
17/10/2024 | Coast from Fairlight to Dungeness including the Tidal Rother Flood Alert
19/10/2024 | Isle of Sheppey and coast from Kemsley to Seasalter Flood Alert
16/11/2024 | Coast from to Sandgate Flood Alert
16/11/2024 | Coast from Ramsgate to Kingsdown Flood Alert
16/11/2024 | Isle of Sheppey and coast from Kemsley to Seasalter Flood Alert
16/11/2024 | Coast from Whitstable to Margate Flood Alert
16/11/2024 | Tidal Medway, Medway estuary and Isle of Grain Flood Alert
16/11/2024 | Coast from Dartford to Allhallows Flood Alert
25/11/2024 | Rivers Eden and Eden Brook Flood Alert
26/11/2024 | Rivers Eden and Eden Brook Flood Alert
26/11/2024 | Upper River Medway Flood Alert
26/11/2024 | River Teise area from Lamberhurst to Goudhurst Flood Alert
26/11/2024 | River Bourne from Hadlow to East Peckham Flood Alert
26/11/2024 Eiavne;l Rother and its tributaries from Turks Bridge to the Royal Military Flood Alert
26/11/2024 | Upper River Stour Flood Alert
26/11/2024 | Plenty, Swalecliffe and West Brooks Flood Alert
27/11/2024 | River Darent from Westerham to Dartford Flood Alert

Page 10




27/11/2024 | Lower River Medway Flood Alert
27/11/2024 | River Beult from Pluckley and Bethersden to Stilebridge Flood Alert
27/11/2024 | Middle River Medway Flood Alert
05/12/2024 | Upper River Medway Flood Alert
05/12/2024 E;v:;l Rother and its tributaries from Turks Bridge to the Royal Military Flood Alert
09/12/2024 | River Beult from Pluckley and Bethersden to Stilebridge Flood Alert
09/12/2024 | Upper River Stour Flood Alert
10/12/2024 | Lower River Medway Flood Alert
19/12/2024 | Isle of Sheppey and coast from Kemsley to Seasalter Flood Alert
19/12/2024 | Coast from Whitstable to Margate Flood Alert
19/12/2024 | Tidal Medway, Medway estuary and Isle of Grain Flood Alert
19/12/2024 | Coast from Dartford to Allhallows Flood Alert

Source — Environment Agency

Appendix 2.1: EA Flood Alerts and Warning Table
- Comparing 2024 April — June/July - September /October - December

EA Flood Alerts and Warnings issued

. X Coastal Coastal Total River River River Overall
Time Period . .
alerts warning Coastal Alerts Warnings Total Total

2024

i 16 1 17 12 1 28 2
April —June
2024
July - 4 - 4 24 3 28 3
September
2023
October - 27 - 17 - 17 44
December

Source — Environment Agency

Page 11



21 abed

Appendix 2.2 EA Flood Alerts and Warnings visual map display
- Issued since 1% of October 2024 — 31t December 2024

Dvﬂ' SIS Ve £ PN =

Source -Data
from
Environment
Agency Formed
into visual map
on Resilience
Direct

50km |
| 20mi |

© Crown copyright and database rights (2025) Ordnance Survey (licence number 100038200).
Mapping to be used solely for preparing for and to i

.
P 9 g

Poweredby /A 1 IR o X
systems




Appendix 2.3: EA Flood Alerts and Warning pie chart

- Comparing July to September 2024 and October to December 2024

Flood Alerts and Warnings -
July to September 2024

= Coasta Alerts = Coastal warning

= River Alerts = River warning

Flood Alerts and Warnings -
October to December 2024

= Coasta Alerts = Coastal warning

= River Alerts = River warning

Source — Environment Agency — Data from EA formed into visual Pie chart.

Appendix 3: Thames Barrier closures

Date of operational closures (2024 October- December)

- N/A

Date of test closures (2024 October- December) —
- (Closure 682) - 7t November 2024
- (Closure 683) - 19t December 2024

2024 2024 2023

October- December January - December  January - December
Operational closures - 17 6
Test closures 2 6 10

Source — Environment Agency

Page 13




Appendix 3.1: Thames Barrier operational and test closures in visual pie chart

Thames Barrier closures - Thames Barrier closures-
October- December 2024 January - December 2024

= Operational Closures = Test closures = Operational Closures = Test closures

= No closures = No closures

Source — Environment Agency — Data from EA formed into visual Pie chart.

Appendix 4: Met Office weather warnings — October to December

Weather Number of Warnings No of Events Dates covered by Events

Thunderstorm 3 2 October: 7, 8-9
Rain 3 1 November: 26-27
Fog 1 1 October: 18

Ice 1 1 November: 19-20

November: 23-24, 24
December: 6-8, 8,

Gl 1 > January: 1-2 (issued 29-31
Dec)
Wind & Rain 1 1 December: 6-8

Source — Environment Agency

Page 14



GT abed

~=> Kent Statistics — October to December 2024

Met Office

October ‘$ November $ December #
- f‘ ] . ‘4

Mean Max
Temp

October 104% +0.6 C
November 74% -0.1C
December 67% +0.9C
(e o8] Tt
(Sep-Nov) ¥

The Autumn looks wet, but this is mainly due to a very
wet September (192% of the long-term average) with
QOctober near average and November being dry.

Compared to 1991-2020 long Term Average




9T abed

Appendix 6: Met Office Statistics — October to December 2024
Source — Environment Agency

=~ 3-month Outlook — January to March
Met Office https://www.metoffice.gov.uk/services/gsovernment/contingency-planners/index
Temperature Precipitation
5% 40% 55% 15% 55% 30%
COLD AVERAGE MILD DRY AVERAGE WET

0.3x Vv 0.7 V¥ 2.8X A 0.8x ¥ 0.9x Vv 1.5X A

the normal chance the normal chance the normal chance the normal chance the normal chance the normal chance

Wind Summary
« Stormy conditions, and impacts from high
o o o winds, are more likely than normal.
d1ance1thegeas{?will be changesseas{?will be d1anoe3ﬂmsseas{?will be . ngher than n0rma| Chance Of th|S pe“Od
CALM AVERAGE WINDY being wet.

0.5x Vv 09x Vv 1.8x A « The period is unlikely to be cold overall.
the.normal chance me.normalchance the.normalchance . However, ShOI’ter-hved COId Spe"S remaln

possible.

www.metoffice. govuk © Crown Copyright 2024, Met Office




	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting on 20 November 2024
	7 Environment Agency and Met Office Alerts and Warnings and KCC severe weather response activity

